CONSTITUTION

KELAB ALUMNI HARVARD BUSINESS SCHOOL MALAYSIA (HARVARD BUSINESS SCHOOL ALUMNI CLUB OF MALAYSIA)

CLAUSE 1 NAME

1. The Association shall be known as

KELAB ALUMNI HARVARD BUSINESS SCHOOL MALAYSIA (HARVARD BUSINESS SCHOOL ALUMNI CLUB OF MALAYSIA)

Hereinafter referred to as "the Association".

- 2. Meaning of name:
- 3. Level: Kebangsaan

CLAUSE 2 ADDRESS

1. The registered address is

LEVEL 3A 07 BLOCK C, PUSAT DAGANGAN PHILEO DAMANSARA 1, NO. 9 JALAN 16/11 OFF JALAN DAMANSARA, PETALING JAYA 46350 PETALING SELANGOR

or at such other place as may from time to time be decided by the Committee; and the postal address is

LEVEL 3A 07 BLOCK C, PUSAT DAGANGAN PHILEO DAMANSARA 1, NO. 9 JALAN 16/11 OFF JALAN DAMANSARA, PETALING JAYA 46350 SELANGOR

2. The registered and postal addresses shall not be changed without the prior approval of the Registrar of Societies.

CLAUSE 3 OBJECTIVE

The Club objectives shall be: -

To foster social and fraternal association amongst Harvard Business School Alumni and also other

Harvard University Graduates in Malaysia;

To generate increased interest among senior management p e r s o n n e I a n d p r o mi s i n g u n i ve r s i t y gr a d u a t e s i n management positions to further their management training at various programs of the Harvard Business School, Boston Massachusetts, U.S.A.;

To promote the establishment of scholarship funds to assist qualified candidates offered admission to the Harvard Business School. The Bye-Laws of such scholarship funds shall be registered with the Registrar of Societies.

To have connection with the Harvard Business Schools Association, Boston, Massachusetts 02163, U.S.A.

To enhance the professional standard, management and the practice of Malaysian Business.

CLAUSE 4 MEMBERSHIP

MEMBERSHIP

Section 1

The following persons shall be eligible for membership in the club.

a) Ordinary Members

Any person who has officially enrolled and successfully completed the following programs at the Harvard Business School shall be eligible for Ordinary Membership.

- i) The Masters in Business Administration Program (MBA)
- ii) The Doctor in Business Administration Program (DBA)
- iii) The Advanced Management Program (AMP)
- iv) The International Senior Managers Program (SMP)
- v) The Program for Management Development (PMD)
- vi) Any Program conducted by the Harvard Business School Boston, Massachusetts, USA as may be approved by the Executive Committee. Any person who is or has been a member of the Faculty at Harvard Business School shall also be eligible for ordinary membership.

vii) Any person who has officially enrolled and successfully completed degree programs at Harvard University or any of its affiliated colleges and schools other than the Harvard Business School. Any Ordinary Member, who at any time has paid the entrance fee and annual subscription for a period of three years, is deemed to be an Ordinary Member for Life.

b) Honorary Members

Any person who has rendered special service or assistance to Harvard University or any of its affiliated colleges and Schools or the Club shall be eli gible for ho norar y membership; provided that such a person shall have been proposed and seconded by ordinary members of the Club.

Honorary members are exempted from paying entrance and annual membership fee. Their privileges are similar to that of ordinary members.

c) Life Members

Any person who has been officially accepted as Ordinary or Honorary Members shall be eligible for Life

Membership. Life Membership is optional. d) Absent Members

An Ordinary member who will be away from Malaysia for more than one year could apply to be an Absent Member. An Absent Member is exempted from paying annual membership fee and will not have the right to vote or hold office. Upon his return to Malaysia an Absent Member can continue to be an Ordinary Member without

having to pay the entrance fee and making formal application to be an Ordinary Member.

e) Associate Members

Any person who is not an alumnus of HBS but has attended an Executive Education Program of at least one week duration at HBS shall be eligible to be an Associate Member. An Associate Member will be eligible to participate in the Club's activities except that he will not be entitled to vote during the General Meeting and would not be entitled to hold office in the Club except as provided in Sub-Section (f). Any Associate Member, who at any time has paid his entrance fee and annual subscription for a period of three years, is deemed to be an Associate Member for Life.

f) An Associate Member shall be allowed to vote for one (1) representative from amongst them at the Annual General Meeting to hold the office of Committee Member as provided in CLAUSE 8 Section 1 of the Constitution.

Section 2

Every application for membership shall be forwarded to the Secretary who shall at

the first convenient opportunity, submit it to the Executive Committee for approval. The Executive Committee may at its discretion reject any application without assigning any reason therefore. Every applicant whose application has been approved as aforesaid shall upon payment of the prescribed entrance fee and first annual membership fee, be admitted as a member of the Club and shall be entitled to all the privilege of membership as stated in the Constitution.

CLAUSE 5 RESIGNATION AND TERMINATION

RESIGNATION/EXPULSION/SUSPENSION

Section 1

Any member who wishes to resign from the Club shall give 2 weeks notice in writing to the Secretary and shall pay up all dues.

Section 2

Any member who fail to comply with the rules of the Club or has acted in a manner to bring disrepute upon the Club may be expelled or suspended for a period of time as the Executive Committee deems fit. Before the Executive Committee expels or suspends the member, the member should be informed of the grounds of such expulsion or suspension in writing and be given an opportunity to explain and absolve himself in person. Such suspension or expulsion shall be enforced unless otherwise reversed by a general meeting upon appeal by the member.

CLAUSE 6 SOURCE OF INCOME

ENTERENCE FEES, SUBSCRIPTIONS AND OTHER DUES

The schedule of fees shall be as follows:-

Ordinary Members: Entrance fee

Annual Membership fee (for a period of three years only) RM200.00 RM 50.00

Life Members Fee (once in a life time) RM250.00

Associate Members

Fee (Once a life time) RM180.00

Section 4

All ordinary members shall also pay any other fees as may be determined by a general meeting. Annual membership fee shall be payable on or before January 31 of the year or simultaneously with the Entrance fee in the case of an applicant who has been accepted for membership. Failure to pay Membership fee within the time stipulated shall automatically suspend defaulting members from enjoying the rights and privileges of membership until such suspension is lifted by the Executive Committee. If such suspension is not lifted within six months from the due date for the Membership fee, it shall be deemed that the membership of the defaulting members has lapsed.

CLAUSE 7 GENERAL MEETING

GENERAL MEETING

Section 1

The supreme authority of the Club is vested in a general meeting of the members. At least one half of the total membership of the Club or twice the Committee Members whichever is lesser must be present at a general meeting for its proceedings to be valid and to constitute a quorum.

Section 2

If half an hour after the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting shall be postponed to a day (not earlier than a week from the date of the postponed meeting) to be decided by the Executive Committee; and if the quorum is not present half an hour after the time appointed for the postponed meeting, the members present shall have the power to proceed with the business of the day but they shall not have the power to alter the rules of the Club or to make decisions effecting the whole membership.

Section 3

The Annual General Meeting of the Club shall be held in the last-quarter of each year. The Annual General Meeting shall be held with at least fourteen (14) days notice being given to all members of the Club. All members of the Club shall also be provided with the agenda for the Annual General Meeting together

with the audited statement of accounts for the previous financial year and these shall be dispatched to members at least fourteen (14) days from the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Section 4

- a) The business of the Annual General Meeting shall be:
- i) To receive the Executive Committee's report on the activities of the Club during the previous year;
- ii) To receive the Treasurer's report and the audited accounts of the Club for the previous year;
- iii) To elect an Executive Committee and to appoint auditors for the ensuing year;
- iv) To deal with such other matters as may be put before it.

Section 5

An Extraordinary General Meeting of the Club shall be convened:

- a) Whenever the Executive Committee deems it desirable; or
- b) At the joint request in writing to the President of not less than one third (1/3) of members stating the objectives and reasons for such meeting.

Section 6

An Extraordinary General Meeting requisitioned by members shall be convened at a date within thirty (30) days of the receipt of such requisition.

Section 7

Notice and Agenda for an Extraordinary General Meeting shall be forwarded by the Secretary to all members at least fifteen (15) days before the date fixed for the meeting.

Paragraphs (1) and (2) of this rule regarding the quorum and the postponement of an Annual General Meeting shall apply also to an Extraordinary General Meeting, but with the proviso that if no quorum is present after half an hour from the time appointed for a postponed Extraordinary General Meeting requisitioned by members the meeting shall be cancelled, and no Extraordinary General Meeting shall be requisitioned for the same purpose until after the lapse of at least six (6) months from the date thereof.

CLAUSE 8 COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Section 1

The Club shall be administered by an Executive Committee elected at a general meeting. The Executive Committee shall comprise the President, two Vice President, the Hon. Secretary, Assistant Hon. Secretary, Hon. Treasurer, a Director of Activities and six Ordinary Committee Members. The Immediate Past President shall be an ex-officio member of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall be empowered to make bye-laws not inconsistent with the Constitution for the administration of the Club. All members of the Executive Committee and every officer performing executive functions in the Club shall be Malaysian Citizen or Malaysian residents with the prior approval of the Registrar of Societies.

At every Annual General Meeting of the Club one-third of the Executive Committee Members other than the representatives of Associate Members shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election. The Executive Committee Members shall retire in order of seniority and in the event of equal seniority the order of retirement shall be determined by lot.

Section 2

Only Ordinary Members shall be eligible for election to the Executive Committee except as provided in CLAUSE 4 section 1 (f). Names for the above officers shall be proposed and seconded at the Annual General Meeting and election will follow on a simple majority vote of the Ordinary Members present. No Proxies shall be allowed for the election of office bearers. All officers of the Club shall be eligible for reelection.

Section 3

The function of the Executive Committee is to organise and supervise the day to day activities of the Club and to make decisions on matters affecting its running within the general policy laid down by the general meeting. The Executive Committee may not act contrary to the expressed wishes of the general meeting without prior reference to it and shall always remain subordinate to the general meeting. It shall furnish report to each Annual General Meeting on its activities during the previous year.

Section 4

The Executive Committee shall meet at least once every three months, and fourteen (14) days notice of each meeting shall be given to the members. The President acting alone or not less than three of its members acting together may call for a meeting of the Executive Committee to be held at any time. At least one half of the Committee members must be present for its proceeding to be valid and to constitute a quorum.

Section 5

Any member of the Executive Committee who fails to attend three consecutive meetings of the Executive

Committee without satisfactory explanation shall be deemed to have resigned from the Executive Committee.

Section 6

In the event of the death or resignation of a member of the Executive Committee, the Executive Committee shall have the power to co-opt any other member of the Club to fill the vacancy until the next Annual General Meeting.

Section 7

Except where they are contrary to or inconsistent with the policy previously laid down by the general meeting the decisions of the Executive Committee shall be binding on all members of the Club unless and until countermanded by a resolution of a general meeting.

CLAUSE 9 DUTIES OF OFFICE BEARERS

DUTIES OF OFFICE BEARERS

The duties of the office bearers are as follows:

- a) The President shall act as Chairman at all general and committee meetings. He shall also represent the Club in all its dealings with outside persons.
- b) The Vice Presidents shall deputies for the President in the latter's absence;
- c) The Hon. Secretary shall keep all records of membership register (except financial) of the Club and shall be responsible for their correctness. He/she will also be responsible for all correspondence with outside persons and will keep minutes of all general and committee meetings. He/she shall also maintain a membership register;
- d) The Assistant Hon. Secretary shall assist the Hon. Secretary;
- e) The Hon. Treasurer shall keep all funds and collect and disburse all money on behalf of the Club. He/she shall keep account of all financial transactions and shall be responsible for their correctness. Cheques etc., for withdrawals from the bank shall be signed by two members of the Committee;
- f) The Director of Activities shall plan and organise the Club's activities.

CLAUSE 10 FINANCIAL PROVISION

FINANCE

The financial year for the Club is from 1st January to 31st December.

The Treasure may hold a petty cash advance not exceeding RM 1000.00 at any one time. All money in excess of this sum shall within seven (7) days of the receipt be deposited in a bank approved by the Executive Committee. The bank account shall be in the name of the Club.

No expenditure exceeding RM1000.00 at any time shall be incurred without the prior sanction of the Executive Committee. No expenditure exceeding RM2000.00 on any single item shall be incurred without the prior sanction of a general meeting unless it is in respect of a payment under a scholarship fund of the Club as hereto before mentioned under CLAUSE 1 or for a specific project the estimated cost of which has been approved at a general meeting. Expenditure below RM1, 000.00 may be approved by the President and Secretary or Treasurer.

As soon as possible after each financial year ending 31st December, a statement of receipts and payments and a balance sheet for the year shall be prepared and audited.

CLAUSE 11 AUDITORS

AUDIT

The Club shall. at each Annual General Meeting appoint an auditor or firm of auditors to audit its annual accounts and present a report thereupon at each Annual General Meeting. The President may require the auditor or auditors to audit the Club's accounts for any period within the term of office of the auditor or auditors.

CLAUSE 12 **PROPERTY ADMINISTRATOR**

PROPERTY ADMINSTRATOR/TRUSTEES

Three Trustees, who shall be over 21 years of age, shall be appointed at a general meeting and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Club. They have vested in them all immovable property whatsoever belonging to the Club upon execution of a Deed of Trust.

The Trustee shall not sell, withdraw or transfer any of the property of the Club without the consent and authority of a general meeting of members.

A Trustee may be removed from office by a general meeting on the grounds that, owing to ill health, unsoundness of mind, absence from the country or for any other reason, he is unable to perform his duties or unable to do so satisfactorily. In the event of the death, resignation or removal of a Trustee the vacancy shall be filled by a new Trustee appointed by a general meeting as soon as possible.

INTERPRETATION

Between annual general meetings the Committee shall interpret the rules of the Club and when necessary, determined any point on which the rules are silent. Except where it is contrary to or inconsistent with the policy previously laid down by the general meeting the decision of the Committee shall be binding on all members of the Club unless and until countermanded by a resolution of a general meeting.

CLAUSE 14 ADVISOR / PATRON

PATRON/THE COUNCIL AND DUTIES OF THE COUNCIL

Section 1

The Council consisting of the following members shall be elected and shall hold office for a period of two years:-

- i) The three (3) Trustees of the Harvard Business School Alumni Club of Malaysia Foundation
- ii) A maximum of five (5) Past Presidents of the Club
- iii) The Current President
- iv) The Chairman of the Council shall be elected from amongst the Council members
- v) The Hon. Secretary shall be Secretary to the Council.

Section 2

Duties of the Council

- i) The Council shall act as an Advisory Board to the Executive Committee and advise on matters relating to long term policies and expenditures of the Harvard Business School Alumni Club of Malaysia Foundation.
- ii) All matters relating to the long term investments of the Harvard Business School Alumni Club of Malaysia Foundation Funds shall be the responsibility of the Council who shall deliberate and advise the trustees accordingly.
- iii) The Council may delegate all or any of its functions to the Executive Committee.

Section 3

Notice and Quorum

The Council shall meet at least once a year and fourteen (14) days notice of the

meeting shall be given to the members. The Chairman acting alone or not less than three of its members acting together may call for a meeting for the Council to hold at any time. At least one half of the Council members must be present for its proceedings to be valid and to constitute a quorum.

CLAUSE 15 PROHIBITION

PROHIBITIONS

- a) The funds of the Club shall not be used to pay the fines of members who have been convicted in court.
- b) The Club shall not attempt to engage in any trade union activity or allow its funds and/or premises to be used for political purposes.
- c) The Club is prohibited from having affiliation or connection outside Malaysia except with the Harvard Business School Association, Boston 01263, Massachusetts, U.S.A.

CLAUSE 16 AMENDMENT OF CONSTITUTION

AMENDMENTS OF CONSTITUTION

Section 1

No amendments to this Constitution shall be enforced or applied without the prior approval of the Registrar of Societies. Any amendment to the rules shall be forwarded to the Registrar of Societies within 28 days of it being passed by general meeting.

Section 2

Subject to the prior approval of the Registrar of Societies this Constitution may be amended at any Annual or Extraordinary General Meeting of the Club by a two-third majority of the members present provided that no such action shall be taken by any meeting unless notice of said meeting has been duly sent to every member at least fourteen (14) days before the date of the meeting.

CLAUSE 17 **DISSOLUTION**

DISSOLUTION

a)The Club shall not be dissolved, except with the consent of not less than 3/5 of the ordinary members of the Club expressed, in person at a general meeting convened for the purpose, or by postal vote.

b)In the event of the Club being dissolved as provided above, all debts and liabilities legally incurred on behalf of the Club shall be fully discharged, and remaining funds shall be divided equally amongst the Ordinary and Associate members.

c)Notice of dissolution shall be given within seven (7) days of the dissolution to the Registrar of Societies.

CLAUSE 18 FLAG, LOGO AND BADGE

1. Flag

_

Description

-

2. Logo



Description

HBSACM Harvard Alumni Club of Malaysia

3. Badge

_

Description

-